29th March 2021

At the Annual Parish Meeting held on ZOOM on Monday 29th March 2021, at 7.00pm.

Present.

Councillors Mike Elsey, Steve Hayler, George Smith, John Thorn and Cory Vost.

Also Present:-

Cllr. Simon Walsh (ECC), Cllr. James De Vries (UDC), Ms. Jane Gray, Mrs. Melanie Horrigan and Mrs. Mary Green. Mr. David Green (Clerk)

1. Apologies for Absence.

Apologies for Absence had been received from Cllr. Philip Player

2. Minutes.

Resolved – that the minutes of the Annual Parish Meeting held on Monday 8th April 2019, previously circulated, be signed as a true record (Cllr. Elsey)

3. Matter Arising.

There were no matters arising.

4. Chairman's Report.

The Chairman reported that, although this past year has seen a number of challenges mostly Covid related - the PC has, nevertheless, made important strides in some areas. The major Affordable Housing project at All Saints has been frustratingly slow because the various entities in UDC have not always been easy to identify and this has meant communications have been less than ideal. However, with the help of Cllr. de Vries and RCCE, this is now being overcome and an official letter has been submitted to UDC with supporting documentation. Progress with the Cafe/Shop Project in the Village Hall has been a great deal more marked with planning approval granted and building regs. application submitted. Some members of the VH Committee have expressed concerns about various aspects of the plans so a meeting with the architect is to be arranged. The proposed tenants for the project remain very positive and, with completion/occupation estimated at Aug./Sept., they continue to be more than happy.

The renewal of the White Horse House lease has been another victim of delays but it is understood that the final document is under preparation and should be executed with the next two to three weeks.

Speeding issues remain the subject of on-going discussions and will be raised with Cllr. Simon Walsh once again at the forthcoming PC meeting. The intention being to request an official meeting between the PC, a senior police officer and a representative of Essex Highways

Other items of note are the replacement/refurbishment of three benches in the village centre, a new notice board in the same area and the adoption of a previously unadopted street light at the bottom of Carter's Croft. Unfortunately, due to Covid restrictions, the PC

has not been able to re-visit the Rectory Lane recreation ground but it is hoped that a visit can be arranged in the very near future when government guidelines allows

Cllr. Mike Elsey. Chairman of Ashdon Parish Council

5. County Councillor's Annual Report 2020-2021

As you will imagine, the past 12 months have been dominated by events associated with the COVID 19 pandemic.

This has placed your County Council at the heart of our collective response to the various lock-downs and recurrent surges and declines in infection rates.

The County Council has had to act swiftly and decisively as each new element of the pandemic presented itself, and this has tested our Officers to the limit and the senior political team, the County Council Cabinet.

Without recounting every twist and turn, I will summarise the key elements of the past year.

The first lockdown meant a number of outward facing services had to be closed in rapid order. Libraries, Country Parks and Recycling Centres were the most obvious, also Essex Outdoors which provides outdoor activities for schools, mirrored the School closures.

In parallel we had to mobilise welfare support for those who were shielding, and ensure all of those residents who were known to social services were supported. Care home residents and vulnerable children were prioritised with extra support drafted in.

Staff furloughed due to closures of other services willingly offered to step into the welfare space.

All the while, our Public Health Officers along side NHS colleagues closely monitored and reacted to changes in case rate trends across the County.

Recognising the risks associated with Care Homes, Essex CC was a pioneer in getting testing kits into those homes and continues to take the lead with testing with rapid testing sites across the County and now collection points available from a number of larger libraries.

Keeping track of the disease has been a main priority as it allows targeted interventions to occur.

We have led on providing extra school meals during holiday times for school children in need, have provided holiday activity days and continue to support young people through our deployment of laptop computers, either donated or purchased, with many 1000s already given out.

We were able to support Foodbanks across the County with funding for supplies or to help with storage and delivery costs.

The County Council was quick to assemble 3500 volunteers to do much of the support work needed, and this in addition to the many 100s of local volunteers who stepped forward to support their neighbours and friends with prescription collections, delivering

shopping or getting meals out to those who needed them. The Essex Outdoors Centre at Mersea Island became a 'Meals on Wheels' kitchen getting lunches out across the island and to villages nearby on the mainland.

Using Government support and working with the Districts we have been able to ensure that various grants were made available and distributed to businesses and individuals adversely affected by the lockdowns and forced closures of their businesses.

As you are probably aware, I am on the Cabinet and in the early stages were meeting almost daily to assimilate what was going on and at times making those difficult decisions under emergency powers.

Throughout we were working in the best interests on our residents, and although some were controversial at the time, were done with due consideration and discussion.

Perhaps more difficult was the reopening of our facilities, as we then had more knowledge of the disease, and what was required to ensure public safety. For example, in my area of responsibility making sure recycling centres were safe to use. This caused problems as the onsite capacity had to be reduced, and this was compounded by weeks of lockdown, people with lots of time on their hands having major clear outs and added to that working from home increasing household waste by around 20%!

As we emerge from our present Lockdown we are starting to slowly relax these measures, assessing as we go, and ever mindful that public health is our number one priority

It would be easy to imagine that with COVID nothing else could go on. But business as usual continued, and despite the pandemic the County Council has notched up some conservable achievements.

Our budget process is now settled for this coming year with a static position on the County Council element of the tax. It takes 12 months of hard work by officers and Cabinet Members to design a budget that is fair and equitable for our citizens, manages to deliver key services across the County and at the same time demonstrates financial prudence and probity that is the hallmark of this Authority. Our budget is balanced, delivers much and continues to provide good value for money.

The Essex Climate Commission has met over the past 12 months and through a series of working groups provided an interim report which carries a raft of recommendations which will help this Council achieve net zero carbon targets well ahead of the Government's own.

Aside from our very successful tree planting programme, we are already decarbonising our buildings by installing solar panels, replacing inefficient boilers and better insulating them. We are also supporting less well-off households with grant schemes to better insulate their homes and encouraging householders to get solar panels and join our energy saving schemes.

There are plans to have more electric vehicles in our fleet and we have been a key partner in the UK's first forecourt electric car charging station near Braintree.

Our Country Parks have had a bumper year as people re-engage with their outside environment. Nearly 1.5 million visits have been recorded over the past 12 months.

Unfortunately wear and tear is a consequence and some investment this coming year will be necessary. Our floods team is still regarded as one of the best in the country, and we have several 100 houses 'better protected from flooding'. Our programme continues this year with £2.6 million allocated for further works.

Highways always attracts criticism about road conditions, but it is one of the better performing services in the country. Very wet weather and freezing events can cause the roads to break down very quickly, but our pothole repairs number in the 1000s, and our annual resurfacing programme is all set for another season.

As mentioned earlier, our social services have had a busy time, and will continue to do so, there is still a legacy to deal with, particularly for young people, who have lost out on schooling, socialisation with their peers and many other things besides. Education and Children's services are working closely together alongside our Youth services teams to ensure that this part of our community is fully supported.

Simon Walsh, County Councillor for the Thaxted Division.

6. District Councillors Report.

Following an entire year spent in lockdown at one level or another, Uttlesford District Council have adapted their working practices and provisions of services accordingly, as many organisations have had to do. Alongside this, officers have been monitoring a number of operational factors associated with these changes. As we progress out of lockdown we are then able to apply things we have learnt and new working practices that have been developed.

There will not be a complete return to the normal we knew, but a new normal, which through things like remote working solutions will allow UDC to be more cost efficient and more environmentally friendly. This initiative has been titled Uttlesford Moving Forward and further details will be announced soon.

Cllr. James De Vries. District Council Member for Ashdon

7. Village Hall

Cllr. Hayler had no outstanding matters to report

8. Other Matters

Cllr. Hayler reported that the "Give Way" sign and light at the bottom of New Road Hill had been damaged. Cllr. Walsh to report to Highways. Cllr. Walsh also reported that there had been no progress from Highways on the matter of water running across the road outside Springfield, Radwinter Road causing a hazard to traffic during frosty weather

There being no further business the meeting concluded at 7.25pm

Signed	Chairman	Date